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Aspris Holdco Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present {heir strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughout the document, references to the “Company™ refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the ¥Group®
refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited and its substdiaries. All amounts are presented in GBY £m, unless otherwise stated.

Erincipal activity
The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment holding company,

‘The Group is a leading provider of speclalist education and care services to young people in the UK. Educating and
caring for a wide spectrvn of specialist educalion and merntal healtheare needs, including sulism, lcaming difficullies,
social, ernotional and mental health conditions (SEML). In addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mentel heaith services to young people and adults respectively across the Middle Eest, The Group operates via two
primary divisions!

* The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autistic spectrum disordars.

¢ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbelng services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquired 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspris Children's Services Limited (“ACSL™) (previously named Priery Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bidco Limited. These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Compary since incorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals described below. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did rot have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business' section are for the twelve
months ending 3 1st August 24622,

On 28 Junuary 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topco Limited. From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandeastle Care’) are reprasented in these financia)
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hollybiue Healthcare (Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financlal statements, Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed dwing the period.

In addition to the Group’s primary focus of providing high quality education and care (o all those within its services,
the Group has also been focused on the successful completion of the following key developments:

«  Separation from the Prlory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the vecipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group, These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transilional stage ineluded the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone sysiems and support infiastructure, the process of which was campleted by 1% Janvary 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arangement ceased to be provided from that date,



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Repart for the peried to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review {coutinued)

Development of the business (continued)

¢ Acquisition and integration of Sandeastle Cave Into the Aspris Groep. Sandcastle Care provides residentlal

cave places for over 100 young people, primarily in the Noirth West of the UK. These services are similar in

nature o those already provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has been a foens for members of the management team during the peviod.

+  Review of Group strategy and long-term plan, Following the successful separation from Priory Group, the

Group has undertaken a broad review of the key siralegic direction and objectives of the busisess. The
completion of this process provides the overarching framewotk within which the business is managed and
directed by the Board and senior management,

¢ Countinved expaosion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care needs of

both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into K8A. Whilst the Middle East division
remeins small relative to the primary UK operalions (please refer to note 4 lo the financial statements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development sirategy.

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financiel performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key KPIs 2022
Turnover £179.2m
Operating prefit before Tmpairment losses and Excepticnal costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Ccoupancy 1,660
Occupancy % B6.9%
Atnual Growth in Middie East patient appoinlments 5L1%
Motes:

1

2.
3,

Qperating prafiy measure of £23.1m is equal 1o de Group's Opezating loss £4.7m stated before Exceplional tosts of £7.8n, Impaitment
tosses of £19.7m and Other losses of £0.3m

Quality, Capagcity and Occuponcy melrics relate to lhe UK busiress only, unless slated

Capacity an Qecupancy guoted are avemges for the perjod on a non-profarma tasis, with dual placemenis included as a single unit of
capacity and sesupancy




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (continugd)

Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group's performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care.

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majerity of our UK. services are regulated by the
Cffice for Standards in Education, Children’s Seivices and Skills (*Ofsted"), end in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and chiidren’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regulators award quality
vatings to each service. In Abu Dhabi, the schoo) operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu IDhabi Department
of Edueation and Knowledge (FADEK’) but is also subject to Briiish Schaol Overseas inspections. In addition, &
limited number of our services are also regulated the Care Quality Comrmission (*CQC”) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Noithern Treland, and the Middle Enst, by the local cquivalent.

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their rospeslive regulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchmark leve) pubilshed by Ofsted but is below ywhere the business’
objectives are in this area. The provision of the best quality sevvice is a key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this ares, supporled by increased investment in our suppert functions that dicsetly or
indireotly support the quality of our services.

Wwithin the Middle ast, the Group’s specialist education operations in Abu Dhabi {the first dedicated autistnt school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in perinership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
antisro school in the region. The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on 1% November 2022, with the
school zchieving an Oulstanding rating actoss all areas. This further demonstiates the Group's established delivery
of exceptionnl level specialist education services beyond the Group's primary UK matket.

Results for the peviod

The Group delivered high quality services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Aartherities snd communities across the UK and Middle Rast. With an average number of 1,660 young people using
cur services jn the UK during the perlod and [0 young people in the Middle East. In addition, the volume of outpatient
appointments in our Middle Bast Wellbeing centres increased by 51,1% vs the equivalent prior period, driven partty
by the opening of tiwe new centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 26 and the financia! position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profit before exceptional costs, impairment [oss and other [osses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the aperating profitabilily of the business
ingiude the number of service usess in our facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of assoclated non-
Vage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Group’s net loss for the pertod was £27.1im, which was after charging £19.7m impaivment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primarily relate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaken and outlingd above and in note 17, Further details of these exceptional charges
and impalrment ave given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements,

The Group's finencial position and underlying operating cash generation is pasitive, with net assets of £92.0r at the
close of the period and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34.2m,



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (continued

Results for the pertod (continued)

The largest conponent of our cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our stalf, which represeats 67% of operating
costs.

Staff are aur primary resource and the Group priovitises the wellbeing, vetention and recruiiment of our workforce.
This includes increased investment in staffwages, but alse in a range of measures designed to increase slaff wellbeing
and engagement.

Steff shortages have been a feature of the reperling period, with & small number of our svailable residential places
being offline due lo these constraints, Despite these faclors the financial performanee of the Group was Inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.

Future developmeats and strategy

Management consider the Greup to be in a good position Lo expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision and stcong repulation within each region fo provide
egsential services to a greater number of people in the communities thai it serves.

The Group strategy pricritises the improvement of quality and ulilisation acress all our existing facilities, in parallel
with centlnulng to expand the specialist education aspects of the buslness, With the planned opening of new education
capacily at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist educalion providers.

Foliowing the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this sirategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education previder in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limited. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100 primary and sccondary school aged young
pecple in the East of England, To supposti this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth cbjectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its available extornal debi facilities with its existing lenders, This new grawth facility was
agreed and effective fram 8 February 2023.

In addition, after the close of the reporting pertod Lhe Group completed a reorgenisation of its UK operations, This
reorpenisation is simed at improving end strengthening the management strusture to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing {ransparency and managemeni comsmunication through zll levels of the businhess.

in lhe Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Welibeing Centres and via wider
oppottunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Cenire in
Riyedh through its joint venture with a local partner that was entered into in 2020, The Group conlinues lo view
current and future local partnerships in the region as a key avenue for growth,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncerininties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors are the availebility and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased jnflation
and {ncreased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the funding of speclalist education and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, competitive threats from other providers and the loss of key individuals, The
following ave the most significant visks and uncerlainties facing the Group.

Failare to comply with regulation aud inereased regulatory costs

All of the Group's services ave subject to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies. Laws and
regulatlons are evolving within the sector (and may bo introduced in the future) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation end/or reguiations and thelr
effect on its business,

Inspections by regulators are carvied out on both en announeced and unannounced basis, dependent an the specific
regulatory provisions relating to different cave or education services, The failure {o comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group lo cure any defect
noted in an inspection repart could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the registration of sny
service or e decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at onc or mere of its facilities,

To mitigate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experlenced team and through the establishment of’
rabust policies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisions and report directly to the Board,
Homes are regularly audited by the teamn to ensure complience with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal und compliance team, and in rectuitment and
training. Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group medels the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legisiation being implemented.

Ewmployees

The Group's performance depends on its operationa! steff at our schools and residentinl homes. The managets of our
facilities, and their respective site tcams, are essential for the provision of our services. The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adversely
impact the Group’s results,

The relevant [abour markets for certain of our services have become more challenging over the reporting period and
may continue to be challenging, or become move se, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
sta T vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of our cepacity that can be fully operational
and/or slow futwe growth prospects, Whilst (he challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, s compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group.

Tao mitigate these issues the Group has implermented a wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staff. These initiatives are led by dedicated senlor management from cur Human Resources department,
along with our Learning end Development function, and ave targeted at improving overell employee welfare and to
ensure our stafl offering, both financiel end non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate,

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps to ensuve competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaries across the Group during the peried to aid retentlon and recruitiment, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment.

However, there is & risk thal these salary levels re not sufficient o improve the Group's staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff shortages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (conflnued)

Nou-Wage suppltes and cost inflntion

In addition to workfores remuneration, the Group also incurs costs on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses, The cuvent macro-economic backdrop places increasing pressure on
the availabllity and cast of certaln key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk product supply, chaltenges across Europe driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base. There is 8 risk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a minority of thie Group’s cost base, increases could still be material.

In addilion, there is & tisk that cerfain supplles will 1ake longer to source and therefore substitute producls may need
{0 be found, there is a risk this could cause disruplion to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
costly than those supplies which they replace.

In ddition, certain supplies, such as food, are souwrced from a low number of major national suppliers and thetefore
there may be a risk that disruption of service at one supplier, or prics changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these areas the Group has 2 dedicated procurement function focused on optimising our sources, costs of
and security of supply. The Group engages on a regular besis with all our key suppliers to ensure effeclive management
of these risks, In addition, the Group seeks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriete, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side visks.
Mansgement of these visks Include maintaining relalionships with secondary source supplies to ensure opfions are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply [rom a parlicular provider.

Loss of revenue from contracts with UK local authortties

A substantlal proportion of the Group’s UK. revenue derives fram publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
cxpects to continue to rely on the ability and wiilingness of these bodies o pay for the Group’s services, Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there I3 a risk that
either budget constrainis or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocate less money
to the types of serviee that the Group provides, or that political chenge or policy changes mean that fewer services
ave contracled firom independent seclor providers.

In addition, there {5 a risk that (hese Local Authorifies are not abie to meel the increased costs of us viably providing
services al cerlain facilities, due o the aboye-mentioned cost prassures.

Ta mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary reposilions setvices to align with demand. Through the Group's dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning 1eam, and other members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communication yvith our Local Authoritics customers to ensure these is clear and open dlalogus with our key
cusiomers.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Puipcipel Bisks aud Gucertainties (continued}

IT security and Data Protection

The Group’s IT infrastiucture is an integral part of its operaling capability, This infrastructure provides connectivily,
hardware and software applications to all of our facilities and central functions, Furthermote, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment.

Thete is a risk that the systerns or applications fail or are subject to 2 security breach that temporatily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services. In sddition, such an event may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, Which could expose the Group to further liability due to such a breach,

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With 1 dedicated IT depariment reasonable for the IT
environment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured (o enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security,

TImpact from the risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
magroecenomic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates, Distuption was experienced by 108t
sectors, and the Group’s services werc not immune to these impacts,

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate iis full service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully to an online appointment
based model. The teams across the Group performed wilh outstanding professionalism to ensure we continued to
deliver essentinl education and cate to all those that rely on our services.

Whilst there were notable staff abseaces due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constraints that have
impacted the general labour market refevenced above, the Group is cumrently not impacted by the pandemic.

The Directors believe any further similar outhreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a uew Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have a greater Impact on the Group’s ability to provide f1s services.

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.

10
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Prineipal Risles and Uneertajnties (¢ontinued)

Financiaf risle manpgement

The Group Is exposed to financia! risks in the form of credit, interest and Jiguidity risks which avise in the normal
caurse of busiuess. The primary financial visks that the Group is exposedto are noted below, for further detail on these
financial riska please see note 27,

Credit visk

Financigl instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade recelvables.
Cash is only deposited with mgjor financial institutions that satisfy certain eredit criterla.

Credit risk is not considered 10 be significant given that over 90% ofrevenue is derived from publicly funded entities,
and paymenl is taken in advance or at time of (reatment for privately funded healthcare services at our Wellbeing
centres,

Interest rate risl

The Group is fivanced by a combination of Senior and Revelving externel eredit facilities, All the external debt of the
Growp containg & variable element which is tinked Lo the Sterling Cvernight Index Avelage, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 20286,

The Group regularly reviews the aptions available to it for the hedging of Interest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest burden on lts external debt, In light of prevailing merket conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instraments, the Direclors belicve the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rale
rises.

Liguldity visk

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
Thae Group has sufficlent avallable facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commilments. The Group has
access 10 a Revelving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group's operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the financial slaiements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undeawn,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statcinent

The Tollowing Sectlon 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Directors
have had regard to the mmatters set out in 5172 {12 to 1f) inctuding key decislons and matteis that arc of strategic
impoxtance to the Group, The Board of Directors, in line with thelr duties under 5172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in a way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promate lhe suceess of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing 50 have regard to a range of mattors when making decisions for the fong term.

We aim to pursue an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakeholders in order to develop & clear
understanding of their needs, assess their perspectives and monitor their impact on our strategic objectives. As part
of the Board’s decisjon-making process, the Directors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst also having regard to 2 number of broader factors, including the Impact of the Group’s
operations on the community and environment, responsible business practices end the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term,

Key stakeholders

Cur key stekeholders are our service users (and their families), our workforce, our regutators and our investors and
lenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are also important stakeholder groups.
All key Boerd decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder proups, as follovys:

Service users and their families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and o young people and adults in the Middle East. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operations and objectives. The Diveclors monitor the qualily of service
proyision to ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In uddition,
the Divestors monitor the condition end appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided ere appropriately configured and maintained to the high standards
requited for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our operational teams, who
interact directly with service users and thelr familics, and through maltiple channels of communication to senior
management to ensure issuss can be raised and escalated outside of eny specific care team or faoility. The directors
are committed to open communication and transparency regarding all aspecls of our service delivery, and ensuring
the (Group’s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each Individual service user,

Worlkforee

Our workforee is key to providing safe and effective care to those whom we support. The Group employs & wide array
of specialist cducation and care professionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
monitor the results of staff surveys, both regular and ad hog, together with the Group's system of employee forums
which accuy at local, tegional snd national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of aclions taken in response to the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tallored career pathways available to all Group employees. Annua! salary reviews are
undertaken with reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner. Fusther information in respect of employees is set out on the Divectors’ report.

Investors

CGur shareholders register consists of a majority sharehalders, Standbyco 35 B.V, who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Bquity Investmenis B, and a number of minority shareholdets which includes our largest single landlord
(ivedical Propertics Trust) and various members of the Group’s management team. The Board engages regularly with
its major sharcholders in order to, inler alia, develop long-term and shart-term business strategy, decide upou resource
allocation and cansider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group performance and direction.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Sectiop 172(1) statement (eontinwed)

Regulators

We are subject to a high degree of regulation, patticularly in relation {o the registration and ongoing inspection of our
services, The “business review™ section above autline the key regulatory bodies. Results of inspections and tmore
general reports made by the regulstors are discussed by lhe Board where appropriate, and ongoing dialogue is
mainteined in order 1o respond with apility to emerging areas of focus. Some of our regulators alse have responsibility
for monitoring the ongelng financial viabliity of our business -- senior management meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in this process. Staff bonuses schiemes at all Ievels of the organisation ace at least partly linked
to the oulcornes of interngl and externa! quality metrics.

Customers

The majotity of our revenue is generated fiom the provision of services to Lacal Authoritics and ather public bodics,
with a minority of revenucs generated from private funding. In all cases is important lhal we evolve aur service
provision to satisfy locat demand (the needs of which can change over time), meet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the righi time and place al an appropriate cost, Communication with customers is ongoing
both locally and nationally, and the Board wili consider the requirements of customers when alloceling resources for
new o amended service offerings, and aprecing a general approach to funding,

Suppliers

We aim (o treat our suppliers fairly and work in partuership with thear as they movide essential goods and services to
the Group. It is our policy Lo adhere (o agreed credit texms. We mainlain strong supplicr relationships acoss our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procurement function. Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforce,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and care professions, who play av esseniial role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and vobust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable outcomes fov suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The: Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
imporiant thet the impact of our operatlons on the communities we operate In ere taken into consideralion, We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when conlracling with suppliers, or considering any
significant developmenl projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines princlpal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those thal have e sigrificant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups, By way of example, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching those principal decisions.

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, prior to the stait of the new financial end academic year, the finai budget for the twelve months
ending 31st Aupust 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
lo awrive at an aggregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affecied are owr Investers and our workforce.
Some of {he key consideralions laken into accoun! included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff retention and growth of our services to service a greeter number of people,

13
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Tacility vefurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budgpet, and looking ahead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditure projects in order to refurbish and/or expand existing facilities, retool locations 1o better reflect
dernand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions to expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and current and future service users, Some of the
key considerations laken into account included the fikely return on investment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requirements of commissioners in providing a particular service, and our abllity to safely and effectively
operate the service,

Anti-corruption and anti-hribery matters

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and conlrols in place, These are
suppurted by an internal audit function that has the mandate to perform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any (vansactions ocourring al a local, reglonal or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on ils behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtol
Drirector Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking,

QU221 6HT

21 March 2023

14



Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present {heir reporl and the consolidated financial stateinents Tor the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
Angust 20232,

Incorporation
The Company was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated finencial slalements have been prepared in accordance with International financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the IFRRS Interprelations Cominittes (“IFRS IC”) interpretations as adopled by the UK.

This repart should be read in conjunction with the strategic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
wilh Section 414C (2) of the Companies Act 2006 to set out in the sirateglc reperl the following which the Directors
belleve to be of strategic importance:

»  Pusiness review;

+  Future development and sirategy;

e Principal risk end uncerlainties; and
s Financial risk management,

Directoxs of the Gronp

The Ditectors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver ] Bevan {appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis {Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington {(Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not reconunended a dividend for the reporting period and has no current plan to do so.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Statement of Direcfors’ Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for prapaving the Annual Report and the flaancie! statements in
accordance with applicable law and regutations.

Company law requires the Direclots to prepare financial statemenis for each financial year, Under that lew the
Direclors have elested to prepare the financial statements in accordancs with UK adepled International Financial
Reparting Standards {IFRSs). Under company law the Directors must not epprove the financial stateinents unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for thal perlad, In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are vequired to:

¢ select sultable accounting policies and apply them consistently,;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK. adopted International Tinancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} have been
followed, subject to any material departwres disclosed and explained in the financial slatements; and

*  prepare the financial statemenis on the going concern basls unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sutficient lo show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s iransactions and disclose with reasonable aceuracy at any time the financlal position of
the Group and the company and enable them lo ensure that the financial staternents comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the asseis of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other itregularities.

Corperate governance
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspects of the business:

¢ The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overalt management and direction
of all aspects of the Group,

»  TheExecutive Commiltee, which is Chaired by the Chisf Executive Officer and includes senier menagement
from scross ali aspects of the business, meels monthly and are the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the day to day runhing of the Group.

+  Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chalred by the Director of Governance and includes senlor
operational and function leads directly relaled to education end caro guality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk.

¢ Performance and Commercial Review conunittee, shich is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financigl Officer, meets monthly and (s the senior oversight of the financial and commerciat
performance of the business,

» Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legisiation (reguletion 44 of The Children’s Homes
(England) Regulations 2015)) the Group has a rofling programme of independent inspections that report into
the Hxecutive committee and above quality committee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education end care services.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Going concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group's projected trading and essociaied liquidity requirements besed on a range
olseenarios to ensure it has sufficient cash to meel its operational and {inancial needs, These [orecrsts arc ubderpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures fo provide granular visibility over both the near lovm
and Jong-term liguidity tequirements of the Group, to inform the Divectors decision making on all key financlal
matters. The Directors consider both shork term &nd lang-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-
month daily liguidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3
yeat long range plans for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these ilems the Group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forccast to make an
operating profit during the going concetn period, The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group end support the business in future poriods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165,0m due 1o its external lenders and finance lease Habilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders.

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debl facilities that are availabls fo the Group
to suppost general corporate and working capital purposes. As at 319 August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilities were £19.7m

The Directors assessment of going concern considers three primary areas:
1. Key fundamental business factors

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group's revenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of services with spedific characteristics that ave key in considering downside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential educatian and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the last decade and continues fo do so across the
country, Ceifain service aress are sialed as & Govertimeittal priority, hence finding fs ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base with low eredii visk across the significant mafority of the Giotip

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows ave gensrated from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms nnd paid for separately by each oustomer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Establishad position as a trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group Lotds long standing relationships,
oflen held st both operational and management levels, with its individuel custorners. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmarks for quality service provision and continues to place, as a priority, the
pravigion of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Sirength, depth and experience of the Group 's management team and infrasiructire

Over many years the Group has develaped, and invested in, the strength and cxperience of its workforce and
mangagement team. These faclors enable the nationwide provision of our services (o be managed within a rigorous
risk management framework, o respond lo risks as they arise,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going concern (continned}

2

Versatility of skills 1o meer demand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes In the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regulatoys, This
agility reduces the me taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets,

Cash flove visibility

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain vvithin our services for mare than a year, and the
payment value and liming for the related services are largely defined at the oulset of each placement, These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business, Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium tecm.

Assessmnent of the principal risls and impact of & severe but plausible downside scenarie

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Dircetors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of & range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date,

Tn pacticular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Birectors in order to essess the likely
impact of multiple different adversc factors impacting the Group simultanecusly, piving rise to a matetial
adverse impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern peiiod, Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statemenis

Consideration of the controllsble action €hat the Directors can tale to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside scennrio

In vesponse to downside visks the Group has e renge of actlons, within its control, that it could deploy 1o mitigate
tha impact. These include but are not limited ta:

+  Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

s Adapting or pausing of services where ho demand exisls to reduce or hait losses at a particular facility and
better deploy resources

. Reduction in certain areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short fo medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation aclions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having consideree all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group’s ebility to continue as a going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engapgement witi employees

The Dircctors recognise thet the coutinued posiiion of the Group in the specialist education, care and beliaviotral care
indusiry depends on the quafity and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
crucial for the Group fo ensure that service users receive the best quality eare. The key qualily performance indicators
the Group uses to measure engagement and training are: the employee opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group e-learning programine, The Group hes low levels ol sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmes. Whilst monitoring these performance indicators, the Group contibues to review its
remuneration systen to ensure it is fair, transpavent, flexible and provides individual recognilion. Employees have a
personal devslopment plan that is menitored, assessed and modified Suwring the annual eppralsal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications ace particulacly important to retaining and
motivating employees, and throughout the businsss it is the Directors® policy to promote the underslanding by all
employees of the Group’s business alms, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personal end career
development, This is achieved through internal publications, presentations on perfenmance and a variety of other
approaches appropriate for a patlicular Iocation, Bmployees are consulted on jssues through our Active Colleagus
Engagement (‘ACE') forums. In afl Lhese areas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT sclutlons in
order to deliver a positive experience for all out colleagues.

The Directors belicve that it is important to reeruit and retain capable and caving staff regardiess of their gender,
mazilal status, race or religion. Tt is the Group’s policy o give full and fair considerstion to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, to conlinue wherever possible the employment of and to arrange

appropriate iraining for, employces who become disabled and to provide equat opporfunities for the career
development, {vaining and promotion of disabled employees.

Charifable Donatigus

During the period the Group made charitable doration of £50,000. Individual donations were as foliows:

Charity £

UNICEF - Ukraine appeat 50,000
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined encrgy and carbon reporiing

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy infroduced & new reporting regulation
cntitled the Streamlined Enerpy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR™), replacing various other reporting
requirements. Organisations subject to SECI are required to include information relating to their enerpy usage and

carbon eniissions.

The energy used and emissions the petiod ended 31 August 2022 arc as follows:

Emission type Total Calcuinted
Valume LEmissions
(Wh) (Tonnes of
CO%)
Scope 1 (direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) } 5,020,739 970.9
Seope 3 (indirect) 26,798 26,8
Total 18,862,124 3.952.6

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) are Emissions from activities owned or contralled by the Group, that release emissions
info the atmosphere, scope [ emissions for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in owned hoilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emisslons (direct} for the period ave as follows:

Luergy type Definition Total Caleulatesl

Volume Emissions

(IKkWh) {Tonnes of

CO%¢)

Gas Fmissions fiom combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,189.7

Other Fuels FEmissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3
machinery and engines

Transport Emissions fiom combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9

purposes
Taotal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emtissions (indirect) are emissions relersed into the atmosphere assoctated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling, These are indirect emissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group does nat own or control.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Stremmnlined energy aud earbon veporting (continued)

Scope 2 Bmissions (indirecl) tor the period arc 28 foflovs:

Energy type Definition Total Caleulated
Yolume LErisstons

{leWh) {Townes of

CG%)

Electricity Emiissions from purchased electeicity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 BEmissions (indirecl) are emissions that are s consequenec of the actions of the Group, which ocour at source
which ate not classifled as scope 2 emissions, Fxamples of Scope 3 emnissions are business travel by means not
owned or contiolied by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions {indirect} for the period are as follows:

Energy type Definition Total Calculated
Volumne Emissions
(ItWh) (Tonues of
CO%)
Employec-owned cars  Emissicns from business travel in renial cars or 26,798 26.8

employee-pwned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing fue! (mandatory)

Total 26,798 26.8

Intcssity Ratlo

The Group monitors an Intensity vatio in the form of a comparison of emissions to turnover:

Tutensity mersure Turgover Intensity

£m Ratio!
Tonnes CO% per lolal £m turnover 1792 22.06
Total 179.2 22,06

' 1CQ" e/ Tutnover £m
Quantilication and reporting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Governmen! Envlronmental Reporting Guidelines (Maych 2019), the
GHG Repotting Protocal - Corporate Standard, and from the UK. Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Repotting docutment for calculeting carbon emissions. Energy usage information {gas end clectricity}) has
been oblained directly from our energy suppliers and half-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the ITH supplies.
For supplies where there were not conplete periods energy vsage available, fial profile estimation fechniques were
used tu complete the periods consumption. Transporl mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group’s cars rod grey fleet, CO?c emissions were calculated using the appropriate emission factors 2022 from
1he UK Governmeni GHG conversion informatlon,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Stremnlined energy and earbon repording (continued
Eunergy efficient actlon

In the past year the Group has undertaken various enetgy officiency works across the estate, inctuding the upgrading
of AC systems, botlers and insulation. The Group have, at u number of siles, commenced conversion of Oil heating
systems to more efficlent LPG solutions. These focussed works are ongolng alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and gencral efficiencies,

The Group will continue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of BSOS (Energy Saving Opportunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint thyough continued structured investment in encrgy
efficicncy programmes.

Ethical trading

The Group endeavowrs to purchase goods and services with the least environmental impact, Our efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segrepation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste mway from landfill. Aspris alse recycled 35% of all wade wasle generaled, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end 0f 2023.

We continue to be supported in our efforts through the colleclion of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking ail to dissel, and other initiatives.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Rach Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of sny
relevant audit information and to eslablish that the Group's auditor is aware of thal infoumation. The Directors
cotifirm that there is no relevant infolmation that they know of and of whick they know the auditor is unaware.

Appraved by the Beard and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringlpn
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBLERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opiunien ou tle financlal statements
In pur aplifon:

» ke fingnclal slatements give a true and fair view of the stete of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group®s loss for (he period then ended;

» the Group finencial slatements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting slandards;

+  the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepatved in accordance with Uniled Kingdom
Generslly Accepted Accounting Practice; end

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cotnpanies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris Boldco Limited (“the Pavent Comypany™) und its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the peried ended 31 August 2022 which comprise {he Cansofidaled Tncome Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Cansclidated Statement of
Chaages in Equity, Statement of Finencial Position, Stalement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Tlows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes o the finsuciel statemonts, including a2 summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework thal has been applled in their preparation is applicable law ang UK
adopfted International accounting slandards, and as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Bnsis for apiulon

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Stendards o Auditing (UK) ([SAs (UX) and applicable faw.
Qun responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s respousibitities for the audil of the
finencial stafements section of cur reporf. We believe thaf the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropiiate to previde & basis for our opinion,

Independence

‘We are independent of the Group and the Parenl Company in aceordance with the ethical requirements that ave relevant
to our audil of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibifities in accordance with these requirements.

Couclusions relating fo goipg concern

In auditing the financial stalements, we have concluded that the Directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
in flie preparation of the financial statements is apprapriale.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matesinl uncertainties refating to events or
conditions that, individuaily or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Compaty's ability to
continue a5 a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when (he financiat stalernents are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the tesponsibilities of the Divectors wiih respect 1o golng concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Aspris Holdco Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Other informaftion
The Divectors are responsible for the olher information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and aur auditor’s report thereon. Our opinlon on the financial
statements does not covey the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repart, we
do not express any fotm of assurance conclusion thereon.
Ourresponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, considerwhether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of {he audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we sre
required to determine whether this glves rise 1o a materlal misstatement in the financlal statements themselves, [,
based on the work e have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this olher information, we
are requived to report that fact.
‘We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companles Act 2006 roporting

In owr opinion, based on the work undertaken in the courss of the audit:

s the information given in the Stratepic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financinl statements are preparcd is consistent with the financial statements; and

s the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable [egal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledpe and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and ils environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Stretegic report or the Directors report.

We have nothing ta report in respect of the following matters in 1elation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

» nadequate accounting recards heve nol been kept by the Parent Company, or refurns adequate for our audit
have 1ot been recsived from branches not visited by us; or

s the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» cettain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; ov

* we havenol received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilitles of Directors
As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

conirol as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparalion of financiel statements that are fiee from
material misstaternent, whether due te frend or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINULD)

11 preparing the financial siatements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concen: and using the going
cancern basis of accounting unkess the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or fo
cense operations, or have no realistic alternative bul fo do so.

Auditor’s vesponsibilifios for the audit of the flnancial statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about wheiher the financial stalements as 4 whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fieud or etror, and to issus an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high Ievel of assuranes, but is not e guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
18As (UK) will always detect a material misstatenienl when [t exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material If, individually or in the sgeregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

Fxtent toswlich the audit veas capable of detecring lrregularitles, inchiding frand

Irregulatities, including fraud, sve Inslances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in
line with cur responsibilities, autlined above, (o detect materlal misstatements in cespect of irregulayities, including
frand. The extent to which our procedures are capable of delecling irvegularities, including frand is detailed below;

We have identified and assessed the potential risks related to irregularities, including fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group™s remuneration policies,

o enquiries of manogement regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
respense lo the risk of fiaud and any knowledge of actual, suspecled or alleged fraud; and the
conlrols in place to mitigate visks retated to fraud or non-compliance with layys and regulations,

o oblaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks arcund the
fraudulent recopnition of amounts,

We have responded to risks identitied by porforming procedures including the fallowing:
o enquity of menagement concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures end testing 1o supporting documentation 1o assess
compliance with relevant laws and regulalions;

o performing anaiytical procediras to identify any unusual or unexpecled relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minules of meetings of those ¢harged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of [raud through management override of controls by:

o sample testing 1he appropriateness of jownal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of o potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significant transactions thal are unusual or cutside the normel coutse
of business;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among the engagement leam how and where frand might oceur in the financial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recopnition, specifically in relation to revenue existence, as well as the potential for
menagement overide of controls specifically in relation te the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropiiate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recognition, testing the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific procedures over
the existence and cut-oft of revenue; and

o discussing wifl: management and those charged with governance whether they are aware of any
fiauds, or non-compliance with laws and regutations, during the petiod.

Our audit procedures were designed fo respond to tisks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fiaud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from errer, as fiaud may involve deliberate conceatment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent Jimitations in the audit procedures performed and the further reinoved non-
compliance with [aws and regulations is from the cvents and transactions reflected in (he financial statements, the less
Iikely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our tesponsibilities s available on the Financiel Roporting Council’s websile ati
hitps://www. fiv.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilifies. This description forms pait of our auditor’s report,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, 45 & body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
mombers those malters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no othey purpose, To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do 1ol accept or Bssume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’s membexs as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions e have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Paul. '&Muﬁm

E10CCHCF40AB4CC...

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Audltor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note W22

£an

Revenue 4 179.2

Operating costs (156.1)

Exceptional items 10 (7.8)

Impairment loss 15 (197

Other losges 8 (0.3}
QOperating loss E

Net finance costs 9 22.7}
Luss befare taxation T @i

Ingome tax 1 0.3
Loss attributable to the owners of the Graup m—
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
2022
£m
Loss for the period 27.1)
Total compreliensive income for the period {27.1)
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial staternents.



Aspris Heldeo Limited
Registration Number: 135346335

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

R it Note 2022
£m
Assefs
. Non-curvent rsgels
‘Property, plant and equipment 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intangible assels 14 143 .4
4579
Cyurrent assets }
Trade and other recelvables 18 24,5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 18.1
42.6
Totnl assels 500.5
Cutrent linbilities
Leasc liabilities 13 [CR)]
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Income tax liability (0.9)
Deferved income 20 (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilitles 137
Non-curvent Habilities
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans aud borrowings 22 (155.6)
Provislans 23 1.0y
Deferved tax liabilities 26 (36.2)
(352.2)
Met assets 92.0
Share ¢apital 21 84 .6
Shate premium 34.5
Accuroulated losses (27.1}
‘Total equity 92.0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

7
irecto,

21 March 2023
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vevor M Torringfo
Director

The notes on pages 34 1o 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Share Retnined Total equity
Premium Esrnings
Loss for the period (27.1} 27.1)
Total compreliensive income (27.1} (27.1)
New share capital subscriled 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
At 31 August 2022 84.6 34.5 (27.1) 920
30

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,



Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Nutnber: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
£m
Assefs
Noi-eurrent asscls
Investments in subsidiaries 16 119.1
Current assets
Trade and otier receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 0.7
0.9
Total resets 1200
Cwrrent lishilities
Trade and olher peyables 24 0.3
Net current assets/(Habilities} -
Net assets 119.1
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 345
Total equity 119.1

The Company hag taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 468 of Lhe Compatiles Act 2006 from
presenting its own profit and loss account. The Company's loss for the year was £19,000,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringio
Director

T}rector

21 March 2023

31
The notes on pages 34 to 73 [orm an integraf part of these financial stalements.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share eapital Share Retained Total equity
Preminm Earuings
Loss for the period - -
Tatal compreliensive income - -
Newy share eapital subsexibed 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
At 31 Aupust 2022 . 84.6 34,5 - 119.1
3z

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

e e s vEmome ame—e

Cagh flows from opernting aetivities
Loss for the period

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amarlisation

Depreciation on tight of use assets

Tmpaltment of goodsvill

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
Fipance income

Finange cosls

Share of [oss of equity accounted investees
Income tax

Working capital adjustinents
Ingrease in {rade and other receivables
Inerease in hade and other payables
Inerease in provisions

Decrease In deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Tncome taxes patd
Not cash flow from operating actlvitics

Cash flows from fnvesting activities

Ihlerest received

Acqguisitions of property plant and cquipment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Advances of loans to joint ventures

Acguisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds rom issue of ordinary shares

Proceeds from exlernal borrowing draw downs
Repaymeat of external borrowing

Repayment of loans advenced from former parent
Prineipal paid on lease liabilities

Interes! paid on lease Liabliities

Net increase in, and closing ensh and eash equivalents

Nate

—
DD e L O O

16
17

2022
£m

(27.4)

137
8.5
19.7
03
©.1)
22.8
0.5

€0.3)
38,0

(6.4)
4.1
0.2

{0.1)

358

(1.6)
34.2

0.
{12.1)
1.0
(1.1)
{123.7)
(135.8)

(11.3)
119.1
158.6

(41.3)

(20.1)

(8}

{10.5)

119.7

181
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financisl stalements,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augnst 2022

1. Generalinformation

The company is & private company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, regisiration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial staternents were authorised for [ssue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policies
Stafement of compliance

The Group fivancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standavds
and its Interpretations adopted by the UK {("UK adopted 1FRSs"),

Summary of significant accounting policies and leey estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesc financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The consclidated Financial statements arc prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 as applicabie to companies using TFRS.
The Company has elected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
aocepted ascounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historieal cost accounting rules,

The Company has teken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Compenies Act 2006 and
elecied not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these fineamelal statements,

Going concetn

The Boerd revicws forecasts of the Group’s liguidity requirements based on a range of seenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cesh to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and pracedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on !l key financial matters. The Divegtors
consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, rangiing fiom rolling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, aanual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Bach of these projects the liquidity and covenant headreom for the Group,

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the peviod ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current perlod
reflects the nan-cash Impairment of goodwill (see note 15) cf£19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities snd surpins
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Oroup had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans
were due to our shareholders.

Ag part of their considerations the Directors teview a range of different scenaios, including a severe but plausible
downside scenarle to assess the impact on both the tiquidity and eovenant headraom of the Group, see note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Basls of consplidation

‘The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
drawt up to 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and eperating policies of an entity 5o as to obtain henefits from its eclivities,

The results of subsidisries acquired or disposed of diring the year are included jn the income slatement from the
cffective date of aoquisition or up o the effective date of disposal, a5 appropriate, Where necessary, adjustments ars
made lo the financlal statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cosl of 8 business combination is measured as the fair vaive of the assets ghven,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incwred or assumed al the date of cxchange, plus costs directly aftributable
to the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and fiabililies and contingent {iabifities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially af {heir fair values sl the acquisilion date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s inlerest In the net fair vajue of the identifiable assets, liabilitics and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as poodwill,

Inter-gompany tratisactions, balances and unrealised gains on ansactions between the Company end ifs
subsidiaries, which ave related parlies, ave ellminaled in fuil.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impaivment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial slatements,

Changes in aceounting policy
The following amendmeais are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021
+ Amendments 10 TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

None of the standards, interprelations and amendments effective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had &
maleripl effect on the financial statements.

The following new standards, interpretalions and amendments are nol yet effect.

Amendinent o 148 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to JFRS 3 “Definition of a business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before intended use
IAS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contracl
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)
o IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a first time adopter
o IFRS9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecopnition of financiaf (iabilities
o IFRS 16: Lease incentives amended example
v ]AS 3: Definition of accounting estimates
s [AS 1! Disclosure initiative — accounling policies
+  Amendments 1o IAS 12 “Deferred tax relating to asscts and liabilities arising from a single transaclion®

- & ® v @

None of the standards, interpretalions and amendments which ave offective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopted early, are expected to have a materfaf effect on the financlal statements,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recognition

Revenue Is recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service, These volume
melrics ate recorded and combined with the applicable fee tate per person per service, to derive the tatal revenue to
be recognised. There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied ag conlrol of services is transferred lo the customer.
The Group has determined that most of ils pecformance obligations atc satisfied over time as the client
simultaneously received and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as the education or care services ave
rendered, In the circumistances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount coreesponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group®s performance compteted to date.

The principles in TFRS are applied to revenve recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Tdentify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocete the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the eniity satisfies its performance obligations

Fee arrangentents

Below are details of fee arrangements end how these are measuved and recognised, for vévenue from the provision of
services: '

Aspris delivers special education and care services to ils service users in ling with contractual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
conlracts eonsist of delivery of services to service users. For all contracts the stage of completion end delivery of
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that datc.

Transaction price

To calculate the transactlon price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agyesments.

Paynient terms

Payment terms range frorn payment in advance of services delivered to within e range of specified days of receipt of
service or invotce, dependant on the specific circumstances and needs of the service users,

Tax

The tax expense for the perlod comprises current tax, Tax is vecognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributable to en item of income or expense recognised as other comprehiensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income,

The current income tax charge is caleuleted on the basis of tax rates and s that have been enacted or
substantively enacled by the reporting dale {n the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable Income.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Property, plant and equipinent

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent
aceumulaled deprecialion and subsequent sceuniplated Impnivraent Josses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly attvibulable incremental costs ineurred in their
acquisition and instailation.

Deprecintion

Depteciation is charged so as Lo write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construclion over
their eslimated useful lives, as Tollows:

Asset elass - Years depreciated over

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leaschold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

Motor vehicles The short of the lease term or 4 years

Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in Lhe net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent {{abiljties of the entity recopnised at
the dale of acquisition. Goodwill s initially recognised as an esset at cost and s subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwiil is heid In the cutrency of the acquired enlily and revalued fo the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwlll is not subject to atnortisation but is tested for impairment on al least an annual basis. The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit ({CGLY'), the value in use of thal CGU and the carrying
value of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36, This assessment factors o the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst olher fastors, current trading, capacity and staffing constraints to assess an estimation
of the fiture cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows,

Negaiive geodwill arlsing on an acquisition is recognised direcily in the income statement. On dlsposal of a
subsidiary or a jaintly controlled entity, the attributable amount of poodwill §s included in the detenmination of the
profit or loss recognised Dy the income statement on disposal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences {including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in & business combination
are Tecognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

37




Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
(continned)
Amortisation

Amortisation Is provided on intangible assets so as Lo write off the cosl, less ahy estimated residual value, over their
expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class Years amortised over
Customer contracts 610 17 years

The amortisation periods ave based en expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-term
customer contracts

Valuation of investments

Investrnents in subsidiaries held by the company arc measured at cost less any accumulated impainnent io the
company’s slatement of financial position,

Cash and eash cguivalents )

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other shori-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.
Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are amounts due ftom customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business, If
collection is expected in one year or less (ov in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they ave presented as non-current assels.

Tiade receivables are recognised initially at the transection price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methad, less provision for impairment, A provision for the impairment of lrade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
accerding to the original tcrms of the receivables,

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business firom suppliers. Accounts payahle are classified as current liabilities if payment [s due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liebilitics,

Trade payables are recognised Inltiatly at the transaction price and subsequently rmeasured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Borrewings

All borrowings are inilially recorded at the fair value which is often the amount received, net of transaction costs,
Borrowings are subscquently carried al amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of teansaction
costs, and the amount due an redemption being recognised as a charge lo the income statement over the period of the
relevant borrawing,

Intercst expense Is recognised on the basis of the effective Interest method and is included in finance costs,

Borrowings are classified as eurrent llabilities unless the Group bhas an unconditional right to defer settiement of the
liability for at least 12 months afler the reporting dale,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences belween the carrying anounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated finaneial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax iisbilities are genecally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Delerred tax ussets ave
ponerally recognised for all deduclible tornporary differences to the extent that it fs probable that taxable profits will
e availeble egainst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such deferved lax assels and
limbilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognilion {other than iu a busitess
combination) of assets and liabilities in a (ransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profil.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities ave not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recopnilion
of goodwill.

Defetred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporacy differences associated with fnvestments in subsidiaries
and associates, and intesests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to conlrol the reversal of the lemporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary differcnce will not reverse in the foreseeeble future. Deferred tax
assels arlsing from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised ta the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which ta utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax ussels is reviewed al the end of each repoxting period and reduced to the exient
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable prolits will be avaflable fo aflow alt or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period In which the
liability is settled or the asset reslised, based on lax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reparting peried.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setife the carrying amounl of its
assets and labilities,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional items

Ttems that are both materiel and non- recccwring and whese significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financial information are referred to as exceptiona! Tterms. Tterns that may
give rise to classification as exceptional include but are nate jimited to, significant and materiat rearganisation and
restructaring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs. Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10.

Provisions

Provislons are recognised ywhen the Group hes & present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the chligation,

Provisions ave measured et the Divectors’ best estimate of the expenditure requived (o seftle the obligation at the
reporting date and ure discounted to present value where the effect is material,

Leases
Definttion

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an assel or a physically distinct part of an
assel {“Ihe underlying asset”™) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Furthet, the contract imust convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof, A conlract is deemed to convey the
right io control the underlying asset if, throughont the period of use, the Group has the right to:

s Obtzin substantially all the cconomic benefis from the use of the underlying asset, and;
s Direct the use of the underlying asset {e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Tnitial recagnition and measurement

The Group initiafly vecognises a lease Liability for the obligation to make lcase payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term,

The lease iigbility ls measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease lerin, with the
discount rate deterntlned by refercnce to the rale inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental barrosving rate on commencement of the lease is used,
‘The lease payments inctnde fixed payments, purchase options et exercise price (where payment is reasonably
ceriain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered
reasonably ceitain) and vaviable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. Tn such cases, the initial
measurement of the Lease liability assumes the vaviable slement will remain unchanged throughout the lease term,
Other variable lease payments ars expensed in the peried to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset {s initially measured at the amount of the lease lability, adjzsted for [ease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial divect costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimatc of restovation, remeval and
dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(8} Incrensing the canrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(c) Re-measuring the carrying amaount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease pay ments or on the occurrence of other specific events.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Lieases (continued)

Interest on the lease ligbility in each period duting the lease term is the amount that produces & constant periodic rale
of interest on the remaining bafance of the lease liabillty. Interest charges are presented separately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the cavrying amount of
anather asset applying other applicable standards,

Variable lease payments not included fn the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in
the period in which the evenl ov condition that iriggers them arises.

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charped in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disciosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plant and equipment, Adjustments are made to the cavylng value of the right of use
asset where the lease liability is re-tneasured in accordance with the above, Right of use assets are tested for
impainnent in accordance with [AS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting polivy in impairment.

Lease modifieations

1f m lease is modilied, the modified coniract is avaluated to determine whether it is or contains & lease. If o lease
coitiiues 1o exist, the lease modification will result in efther a sepaiate tease o a change in the eccounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as & sepaiate lease il both:

(&) The modification increases the scope of lhe [ease by adding the right to use one or more underlying essets; and
(b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in secpe and any appropriate adjustments lo thal stand-alone price to reflect the eircumslances of the particular
contracl.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease madificetion results in two separale leases, the unmodified original
lease and a separste lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases,

[T sither of the conditions ave not met, the modified lease is not accounted fur es a separate lease and the
consideration fs allocated ta the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the madified
lease and 1he discount rate as determined at {he effective date of the medification,

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g. reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decreass the catrying amaunt of the right-of-use asset to reflcct partial or full
{ermination of the lease. Any difference between those adjusiments is recognised in profit or loss at the effeclive
dale of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which ave not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the iessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the comesponding vight-of-use
asset wilhout affecting profit or loss,

Shart ternt and low vailie leases

The Group has made an accounting policy clection, by cfass of underlying asset, not to tecognise lease Bssets and
lense ligbilities for leases with r lease term of 12 months or less (i.e, short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a fease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lesse assets on leases
for which the underlying assel is of low value.

Lease paynients on short term and low velue leases are accounted for on a straighl line bases over the lerm of the
lense or ather systematic basis if considered maore appropriate, Short term and low value lease payments are included
in cperaling expenses in the income statement,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022 :
(continued)

Share capltal

Ovdinary shaves are classified ag equity, Equity instruments are mieasured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received ov receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the timme value of money is material, the initial measnrement is on & presen! value basis.

Defined contribnéion pension obligabon

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed conttibutions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fitnd does nat hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employes service in the current and prior perlods.

Tinancial Instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assels and financial liabililies comprise all assets and liabilities rellected in the statenrent of financial
position, excluding proper(y, plent and equipment, inlangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

The Group recogrises financial agsets and fnancial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes patty to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument,

Financtal assets are initially recopnised at fair value. Finencial Jiabilitios are Initially recognised at fair value,
represeating the proceeds received net of premjums, discounts and transaction costs that are divectly attributable to
the financia) liability.

Purchases or sales of a financtal assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulatlon or convention in the marketplace concerned are defined s a regular way
purchase or sale. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss (*FVTPL") are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities, All regular way purcheses and sales of other finanoial
assels and financlal Habililies are recognised on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or liability is
reccived from ot delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchiases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace,

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets and financial liabilities ave measured at either amortised cost or
fair vatue.

Classification and measurement

Financial instrtuments are classified af inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following categories:-
» financial assets al amortised cost;
»  financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss {FVTPL); or
Financial Jiabililies are classified into one of the following two categories: -
+ financial Habilities at amortised cost; ar
s financia! liabilities at fair valus through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022
(continued)

Financial insteruments {continued)

The ciassification and the basis for measurement ave subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the {inancial assets, as delailed below:-

Financial assels al amorfised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVYTPL:

»  the assels are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cashi flows; and

¢ the conlractual lerms of the financial assets pive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
peyments of principal and interesl on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the sbove two criterie is not met, the financial assets ave classified and measured at fair vajus through the
profit or loss (FYTPL).

1f a financial asset meels the amortised cost eriteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset al
FYTPL. Such an eleclion is itrevecable and applicable ouly if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measuvremen( or recognition inconsistency.

Minancial assefs af fair value tirough the prafit or foss (FVTPL)
Fingnclal assets nol othenwvise classified above are classified and measured as FYTPL.

Financial fiabilities at amortised cost .
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial Habilities at FYTPL, are measured at amorlised cost
using the effective interest rate method,

Financlal fabilities al fair value through the profit or loss
Financial liabillties not measured at amortised cost ave classified and measured at FVTPL, This classification includes
derivative liabifities,

Desecognition

Financlal assels
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

s the contractual rights to the cash fows from the financial asset expire,

« it transfers the right to recelve the contrctual cash flows iv a transaclion in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred; or

= the Group neither {ransfers not vetains substantially ell of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain conttol of the financlal assel.

On derccoguition of @ financla! assel, the difference belween the carryitig amount of the assat and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain ot loss in {he profit or loss.

Any cumuylative gain or loss recognised in OCH In respect of eguily Investment securlties designated as FVTOC {s

not recognised in profit or foss on derecognilion of such securities, Any interest in ransferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognilion that is crealed or relained by the Group is recognised as a sepatate assel or Liability.
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TFiunancial lnstruments (continued)

‘The Group enters into transactions whereby it rensfers assels recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retains cither all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, In such cases,
the transfecred assets are not derecognlsed,

When the Group derecognises transTerred financial assets i their entirety, byt has continuing invelvement in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the teporting date:

(a} The carrying amount of the assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the entity’s slalement of
financial position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecopnised financial
assels, and the line items in which those assets and liabilities ave recognised.

[42)] The fair value of {he assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s contlmuing involvement in the
derecognised financial assets;

() The amount that best represents the entity’s maxitmum exposure 10 loss from its condinuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposure to foss is
detetmined

(d) The undiscounted cash outflows thal would or may be required to repurchase the derecognised

financial assets or other nmounts payable 1o the transferes for the transferred asseis

Financial llabifities
The Group derecopnises r financial liability when its contraciual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Impajyment of financial assets
Measyremen! of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expecled credit losses (ECL) on financia! insteuments that are not
measured 8t FVTPL, namely trade and other receivables.

Frovisions for credit-impairment ave recognised in the statement of incorme and are reflecled in accumulated
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance.

Evidence thal the financial paset is credit-impaived include the following;

+  Significant financial difficulties of the borrower or issuer;

s A breach of contrast such as default o past due event;

+  The restracturing of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

*  Itis becoming probable that the borrowver will enter bankruptey or other fingncial reovganisation; or

*  There is other observable data relating lo & group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the recelvables,

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenue is deiived from publicly funded entities.
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Fiuancial insbruments (contimed)

Fiuancial instraments — Risk management

The Group is cxposed o financial sisks In the forny of credit, inferest and liquidity risks which arise in the normai
course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed (o are noted below, for further delail on thess
financial risks please see note 27.

The principal financial instruments tsed by the Group, from which firaticial Instrument risk arises, gre as follows:

+  Trade receivabley

«  Cash deposits

«  Senior and revolving credit facilitles containing a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index
Average

Capital Management
The Group’s objective when managing ils capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern whilst maximising relurns for stakehotders through the eptimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3. Critical acconnting judgements auc key saurces of estimntion

Tho preparation of the Minancial statements requlres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounis of certain financial assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The use of estimates and assumptions is principally limiled to the determination of provisions for impairment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail below:

Provisions for impajrment

In determining impaicment of financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credif risk on the [inancial asset hes increased significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECL,

Fail value of financial assels and liabilities

Where the fair value of financizl assets and liabilities cannot be derived from active markels, they ave determined
using a vavlety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical modets. The inpul ta these models is
derived from observable markels where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used [n the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial asscts and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liguidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it hias
sufficient cash to meel operational and financial needs, These forecasts are inderpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures fo provide granular visibility over both the near term end long term hquidity
requirements of the Group, to Inform the Directora decision meking on all key financlal matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic inlra year reforecasling processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Bach of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group,

There are necessavy estimates and judgements in the divectors’ assessment of geing concern these are considered in
detal] in the strelegic repoct.

In assessing the potential impact of a vange of risk (actors on the business the Directors have considered the likely
iimpact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impect of
risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet dale.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different advetse factors impacting the Group simwHaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period. Specifically, the severe but
plausible downside scenario assumes;

s Reduction in occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggregate of spproximately 2% for the going
cancen period,

»  Costinflation:

o Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group's planned wage
increases (which already 1efleet annoynced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other internal lncreases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s bese case,
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Critical accouutlng judgenients andd ey svurces of estimation (continucd)

¢  Fee Inflation — over ghd above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shortlall in the
praportion of fee increases that can be successfully achieved,

» Inlerest rate Increases — assumies a merked and sustained increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
flows reguired to service the Group’s debl. The scenario factors in Bank of Eingland Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern period.

We do not consider that COVID-19 will have s material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

The revenue and cost impact of such a scenatio would have a major fiegative impact on the Group's profitability for
the going coricern period. With operating profit being adversely Impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthetmore, in adopting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenatio before relevanl mitigaling
actions hat the business could implement to Hmlt the adverse impaot, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continves to forecast sufficient liquidily and financial covenant headroon.

Dusiness Combinations

The Group underlook three business combinations during the period (note 17). In accordance with IFRS, the
puichase methad of accounting has been used. The Direclors determine and alfocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination. The purchase method requires signiflcant estimates and
judptnents.

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as parl of the purchase price allocation process to
zcclrately value assels acquired and liebililies assumed al the date of acquisition, estimates and assumplions are
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. Examples of crjtical estimates in valuing cerlain asssts we have
acquired include;

s futue expecled cashflows arising from assets and liabilities,
+ the fair value of intanglble and tangible assets, and
*  discounf rates,

Usefui Economic [ife of intangible sssets

The Directors have determined the vseful economic life of certaln intangible assets acquired as part of business
conibination, The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term customer contracts,

Righl of use assets and liabilities

The Group leases a number of properlies in the jurisdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
TFRS16 {note 13).

In caiculating the asset/lability attached (o several of the [case agreements the Group has required use of sn
Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR”). The IBR has considered the risk-fiee rate attributabie to the currency, location
and lease lerm of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Critfical accounting judgements and ey sources of estimation (continued)

The Divectars have applied judgement o détermine the Jease term for contracts that include a renewval or break
option. Extension options and break clauses are included in a number of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Divectors have considered ali facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflected in the
lease term if there is reasonably certainty they vwill be exercised,

Empairment of poodwill and intangible fixed assets

The Directors tnust assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the period, Factors laken into
conslderation in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where il is a component of a larger cash generaling unit, the viabilily, expected future performance
of that unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of each cash
gencrating unit, The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates thal represent the Directors’ best estimales, (note 15)
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(continued)
4. Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the perlod is as follows:

2022
#m
Turnover 178.6
Olher revenue 0.6
178.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is s follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle Easl based divisions 2.7
179.2
5,  Staff costs
The agpregate payroll costs {including directors’ remuneration} were as foilows:
2022
£m
Wages and salaries 91.4
Socinl security costs B.D
Pension costs, defined contribution scheine 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including the Directors) during the periad, analysed by

category was as follows:

Site and operalionat
Administralion and supporl

2022
No.
2,987
174
3,161
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(continued)
6. Operating loss

Artived at after charging/(erediting)
2022
£m
Drepreciation expense 87
Depreciation on ripht of use assets 85
Amorlisation expense 5.0
Expensc on short teem leases 0.2

7.  Auditors’ remuneratlon

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the period, all fees relate to the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incurved related to non-audit services,

8,  Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or losses for the peried ere as follows:

202
£m
Loss ou disposal of property plant and eguipment ) 0.3
9, Finance income aud costs
2022
£m
Finance fucome
Interest on bank deposits 01
0.1
Finance costs
Interest on external borrowings 12.0
Interest on lease liabilities 10.8
22.8
Nct finaace cosis 227
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{continued)
10, Exceptional ifemus

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Asprig formation and reorganisation costs 1.3
Other fransaction costs and charitable donations a7
7.8

Acqguisition costs on business combinations velate to the acquisilion of Aspris Childyen's Services Limited (£2.6m)
fiom the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Topeo Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£0.1m),

Aspris formation and reorganisation costs relate to olher expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as

standalone fictn the Prioty Group and include markeling-related expenses associated with the nevw Aspris byand,

Reorganisation costs primarily relate lo the revision to redundancy costs associated with exit of certain customer

conftacts and the implementation of revised management organisational structures in the Group.

Other fransacticn costs relate to the Group's assessment, and execution, of other gorporate and property refafed

transactions.

The Group elected 10 meke a one-off coniribution to UNICEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the income statementt

2022
Current tax Lm
Current tax on taxable income for lhe periad 13
Deferved tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.6
Tax eredited in the period 0.3y

The ressons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corperation tax
applied to the losses for the year are as follows:-

2022

fm

Loss for the year (274)
Tax using the company's tax vate 19% (5.2
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 53
Tax rate changes 043
Total tax credited in the peried ] _(0.3)
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Taxation {continued)

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of income tax arc expected to Increase firom 19% to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023,

Tax labilitles are recognised when, despite the Group's befief that its tax refurn positions are suppartable, the
Directors believe it is more likely than not that a taxation authorily would accept ils filing poslition,

The NDivectors believe that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past experlence and interpretations of tax law,

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumplions

and wnay involve a series of complex judgements about (Wure events, To the extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the determination is made,

12. Property plant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings and Moter under
bulidings equipment vehlcles  eanstruction Tatal
£m £m £m £m £1n
Cost or valuation
Additions 2.3 6.5 G.1 3.2 £2.1
Acquired through business
combinations 1224 29.6 0.6 3.3 153.9
Disposals (1.0) {0.5) - (0.2) [eW)]
Transfers 0.6 0.3 ) - 0.9) N -
At31 August 2022 1243 35.9 N 54 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 o1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal 02) - (03) - - 0.5)
At31 August 2022 _ 1.7 64 o1 - 8.2
Carrying smount
At 31 August 2022 122.6 28.5 0.6 54 158.1

Under the terms of the Group's external borrowings thers is a fixed churge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
property acquired for a censideration of aver £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group’s
cxternal borrowings,
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{continued)

13. Right of use agscts and liabllities
Group
Assets

Property  Motor vehicles Total

Zm £fm £m

Cast ar valuation
Acquired through business 150.8 2.4 153.2
combinations
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Meodifications g3 - 8.3
Disposals (0.1 (0.1} (0.2}
At 31 Aupust 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Deprecintion
Charge [or the period 7.3 12 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - {01y (0.1}
At 31 August 2022 7.3 1.1 8.4
Carrying amount
At 3 A\lgust 2022 154.7 1.7 156.4
Liahilities

Froperty  IMotor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinalicns 1510 2.4 153.4
Additions 30 0.5 3.5
Modifications &3 - 8.3
Disposals - - .
Interest 10.2 0.3 10.5
Lease payments {14.0) {1.3) {15.3)
Foreign Exchangs movements a1 - 0.1
At 31 Aupust 2022 158.6 1.9 160.5
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Right of use assets and liabilities (continued)
Nafure of leasing activities

The Group leases a numbert of propettiss in the jurisdictions in which it operales. Some of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has opticns to purchase ot exiend
the leases of certain properties. As the exercising of such options is not deemed to be reasonably certain, such
renewal oplions are not taken into account when determining the right of use assets and liabilitics. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease tern.

Lease liabillties are due as follows:

Maturity analysis £
Year 1 15.5
Year2 15.0
Year3 4.3
Year 4 13.9
Year 5 . 13.7
Onvwards 2313
3038
Lass: unearned interest (143.3)
160.5
Anaiysed as:
Non-Current 155.4
Current 3.1
160.5

Amounts vecognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0,9m has been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
renewed, and for rofling lease agreements. Cash payments (n respect of these leases amounted to £0.9n.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agreetnents in excess of & two-menth notice period.
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14, lntangible assets
Group
Confractual
Goodwill customer
{Note 15) relationships Total
£m £in £th
Cost or yaluation
Acguired through business combinations 69.3 98.8 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amostisation charge - 5.0 5.0
Tmpalrment (note 15) 19.7 - 19.7
At 31 August 2022 9.7 5.0 24.7
Carrying amount '
At 31 Augnst 2022 49.6 93.8 143.4

All Intengible Fixed Assets (“IF As™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA*) exarcises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two poinls:

I, Acquisilion of Priory Educalion Services Limited (‘PESL" — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s

Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021
2. Acquisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children's Serviess Limiled cn 28 January 2022
3, Acquisition of Holiyblue Heallhoare (Arden) Limited, lalterly renamed Aspris {Arden) Limited

All IFAs have been amortiged in ling with useful economic lives determined by menagement al each relevant
acquisition dale.

In accordancewith accounling stendards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill and where other
where there gre indicators of impairment,
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15. Goodwill and impairment

Gooadwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fak valile of the net assets acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with IFRS, lhis balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment
reviews, Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-geterating unit (*CGU™) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisition of Pricry Educalion Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently renamed Aspris Childrer’s
Serviges Limited) by Aspris Holdco Limited on 31 August 2021

2, Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3.  Acquisition of Hollyblue Healihcare (Arden) Limited, lalterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Ardex Total

Group castle

Graup
£m £m £m £m
Goodwilt recognised during the peried 21.0 47.7 06 69.3
Impalvment recognised durlng the peried RN ¢ U ))] - (187
Goodwill ] 21.0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared celculations of the

recoverable amourit for cach CGU, For bolh ACSL Group and the Sandcastle Care Group the recoverable velue is

determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the C(JU) based on S-year projections ending in a !
terminal provth rate assumption. Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

I<ey Assumptions ACSL Group Sandcastle Care :
Discount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Termina! Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20,6%
ACSL Graup

Sinee the date of acquisition, the ACSL Group has maintained performance in [ine with the budgeted targets sst for
the business. Cperationat challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the availabilily of staff have been
effectively managed, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’ s profitability for the period.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management ard epproved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustmenis for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to mainlain the estate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Reparding the Group®s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 Aupgust 2021 the Group assessed
the falr value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21,0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group o be £241.1m, £19.5m greater than the canying value, and thus no impairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period,
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Goodwill and impaliment (contiuued)
Sandeastle Care Group

Since the date of ecquisition, Lhe Sandeastic Care business hes maintained 8 high quality rating performance of over
$50% post-acquisition, but the business has been impacted by operationgl challenges that have yeduced both its
available capacity and utilisation, 'Whilst aspects of these challenges are not thougit 1o be permanent, they have
impacted the cverall assessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business. These challenges include
staffing constrainls that have led to reduced telal oceupancy and an adverse impact on opetating margins conpared to
the budgeted targels for the business.

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading gt 31 August 2022, Gperating profit is forecast {6 increase at 19 CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex (o maintain the estate has also been assimed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group®s acquisition of 100% of the share capitel of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £14.0m, compared to the 1otal consideration of £61,7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group,

Management sssessed the recoverable amount for S8andeastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
catrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
ussociated with the CGU by the shoutfull in carrying velue versus the recoverabls amount.

Impairment sensitivities for ACSL Group and Sandeastle Cave Group

1f any one of the following assumptions were amended by 1 percentage point, the impacl on the impairment value
would be as foliows:

Sensitivities Aspris Sandeastle Care [

Discount Rale (1% increase) Reduction fo carrying value | Reduclion to canying value
fram £241, L to £221.2m from £77.6m o £71.6m

Terminal Growth Rate {1% reduction) Reduction to carying value | Reduction to catying value
from £241.1m to £220.7m from £77.6m to £71.5m

Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27)

Reduction fo cairying vaiutﬂ Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m to £223.0m from £77.6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, these were at fair value on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impakment (o the assels of Aspiis (Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expectalions, and thus no impairment to the Goodwill arising
on acquisflion is required in the period.
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16. Investments - Group Subsidiaries

Delails of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Name of suhsidiary Frincipal aclivity

Aspris Midco Limlted Holding company

Aspris Bideo Limited Holding company

Aspris Children’s Services Limited Specialist education services
Coxlease Scheol Limited Nor irading

Castlecare Group Limited Non trading

Progress Care and Education Limited Children’s homes

Speciatity Care Limited Holding compeoy
Strathmore College Limited Care delivery

Aspris {Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limiled Educstion

‘Non trading

Caestlecare Holdings limited

Quantum Care (UK) Limited
Speciality Care (Rest Homes) Limited
Speciality Care {(Medicare) Limited

Non trading
Childven’s care homes
Care delivery

Holding cormpany

Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful  Cave delivery

Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2 Limited
Dunhell Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited
Castlecare Cymru Limited
Casltle Homes Limited
Rothcare Estates Limited

Castlecare Educetion Limited

Non rading

Non trading
Chiidren’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Property company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
vuting rights
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augnst 2022

(continued)

Investments {continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP Non tradlng United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Troup House) Limited * Education United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Agspire Scotland Limited* Children’s care and education  Unlted Kingdom 100%
Galaxy Cefe Limited® Children's carc and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Chiidren’s care and educalion United Kingdom 100%
S Topee Jimited ¥* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
SC Bidco Limited*¥ Holding compeny United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Praperties Limited** FProperty carapaay United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Holding compeny United Kingdom 100%
Sandeastle Care Litnited** Children’s care homes United Kingdom 100%
Portixol UK. Litnited ** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Priory Healthcare LLC¥*** Healthcare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise the registeced address of each subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, Englend, GU21 6HT

*Company regisiered address is: Redig Cily Building, 1a Bridgend, Kitbkmie, Scotland, KAZ5 7DF

*#Company registered address 1s: 49 Whilegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, FY3 8DG

***Aspris Group controls Prioty Healthcere LLC through a combinelion af contractual agreements and the ability to direct the finencial and
operational manggemend of Ihe entity

Aspris Holdeo Limited has piven stefutory puarantees against all the cutstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 37 August 2022. This thereby allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 3944 or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022.

The Group has control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LL.C (“SHe™), an entity registered in K8A, which
opetates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh, The operation, althongh important to management's futwe plans and
strategy in the region, is not seen as meterial in the context of these Financial Statements,

During the periad the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acqulred on business combinetion. SHc did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised (n operating costs.

Tovestments - Company

Group

2022,

Investments made during period - Cost im
Aspris Midco Limited 118.1
At31 August 2022 119.1
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statemeats for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

17. Business combinations

Acqguisition of subsidiary — Aspris Clhildren’s Services Limited and subsidinvies

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Prigry Bducation Services Limited
(latterly named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obtaining control, The principal activity of Aspris Childien's
Services Limited (“ACSL”) is provision of specialist schools, colleges, childien’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bideo Limited, & wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdco Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s scrvices and Middie East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% shareholding in ACSL was abtained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As part of the acquisition, loans totatling £60.1m belween ACSL and its subsidiarics, and Priory Group were scttled,

The atnounts vecognised in vespect of the Identi fiable assets sequired and Labilities assumed ave as sct out in the

table below:

£m Boolt  Iah: Yaiue Tair value
Yalue adjustments
Assets and liabilitles acquired
Property, plant and equipment 134.2 50 139.2
Right of use assels 153.2 (0.2) 153.0
Intangible assely 272 152 42.4
Trade and other reccivables 13.7 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 1.9
Leasc [abilities (153.2) - (1532)
Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134,0)
Provisions 0.8) - (0.8)
Deferred tax lizbilities (3.8) (17.3) (21.1)
Total identifiable agsels 18.4 2.8 41.2
Goodwill - - 21.0
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 62.2
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 62.2
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9
et cesh outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022
(continued)
BHusinesa combinations (continued)

The fair value of the financiai assels includes receivables with a (air value of £12,2m and a gross contractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractuzl cash flows nol (o be collected are £0.4m.

‘The goodwllf of £21m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of eertaln intaugible assels, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such gs;

= Assembled workforee of ACSL, including both (he UK and Middle Bast workforce

*  Aspris’ abilily to extend the existing relationships acquived with Local Authorities boyond the useful
economic Jife anticipated at initial acquisition

«  Development of new relationships in the Middle East

None of the goodwill is expected {0 be deductible for income lax purposes.
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of (he {ransaction,
Acquisitlon of subsidiary - SC Topco Limited and subsidinvies

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shave capital of SC Topco Limited (*Saadeastle Care?),
obtaining control. The principal astivity of Sandcastle Care is the provision of therapeulic eare homes for chifdren.
Sendeastle Care was acquited to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing children's service. The tvansaction provides Aspris with greater coverage In the Northwest of
England, where Sandeastle Caves’ praperties ave primarily focated,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

{continued)

Business contbinations {continued)

The amounts recognised [n respect of the Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the

lable below:
£m Book Fair value Tair
Value adjustments valne
Assets and Iiabilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.23 1.2
Right of use assets 0.2 - 0.2
Intengible assets 12.0 44.4 56.4
Trade aud other receivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 3.6 - 3.6
Lease Jiabilities {0.2) - (0.2)
Trade and othet payables (2.5) - 2.5
Tncome tax liability (1.1) - (1.1)
Loans and borrowings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferved tax liabilities (0.2) (15.9) (16.1)
Total identifiable assets (1.3} 153 14.0
Goodwill - - 47,7
Total cousideration 61,7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash flow anslysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross contraclual value of

£3.4m.

The goodwitl of £47 7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangibie assels, which do

not qualify for scparate recognition, such as;

s Assembled workforce of Sandcastle Care.

+  Sandeastle Care’s ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authotities beyond the

useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition,

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes,

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m arose as a result of the transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Business comblnntions (continned)
Acquisition of subsidiayy — Aspris [Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Greup acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Rollyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obtaining control. s principal aclivity is a property lessor, The
purchase of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited enabled (he acquisition of the freehold interests in properties
previously [eased to the Group. This included propertics thal had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
regidenlial adult care division. Subsequent 1o the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such propertiss wers
dispaged of by the Asgris Group to the Priory Group at fair value,

‘The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquiced and liabilities assumed are as set oul in the
table below:

L Book Valwe i e vl
Asscts and liabilities aequired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 55
Trade and other payables {0.1) - {0.1)
Income tax liability 0.1 - (0.1)
Deferred tax liabilities - {0.6) (0.6)
Total identifiable assets 5.3 (0.6} 4.7
Goodwlll o - - 046
Total consideration 5.3
Satisfied by:

Cash 5.3
Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 5.3
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
hlet cash ouifiow atising on sequisition 53

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £0.1m arose 85 a resull of the transaction,
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(continued)

. Business combinations (coutinned)

Impact of the acquirees on amounts reported in the statement of comprehensive income

The amounts of revemie and prefit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consolidated

staternent of income fou the reporting period is as follavws:

Aspris  Sandenstle  Arden

£mn £ £m

Revenue 1627 16.5 0.0

COperating cost (140.9) {15.5) 0.3

Operaling profit before impairmen! and other losses end exceplional 21.8 1.0 03
costs

Tmpairment and other losses and exceptional costs {8.0) {19.8) 0.0

Operating profit = 13.8 {18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that occurted during the year had been al the beginning of the 12 month trading period

starting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

m
Revenue 191.0
Opetating cost (171.7)
Operaling profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 193
coals
Impairment and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Operating profit (9.0)
18, Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 19.7 -
Pravision for impaimment of trade receivables {0.1) -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Acerued income 0.4 -
Prepayments 1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint ventore {note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 1.8 0.2
24.5 0.2

All cuirent receivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date, None of these are subject to material or significant
credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue Is derived from publicly

funded entities.

Amounts receivable from joint venlure are not subject to interest and arerepayable on demand,
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(continued)
19, Cash and east equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£ Em
Cash at bank 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hend and at bank. Cash at bank is held wiib banks or financlal
institwtion counterparties which are investmen! grade rated. Management do not expect any tosses from non-
performance of counterparties.

20, Deferved income

Group

2021

£m

Acquited through business combination 289
Deferred during the year 28.8
Recognised during the year (28.9)
28.8

Deferred Income Is in respeet of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is released as services are delivered.

21. Issued capital and reserves

Allotted, called up and fully peid shares

2022 2022

. No. £000

A Ordinary shaves of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 i 12
85,866,210 84,646
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{continued)
Issued capital and rescrves (continued)
New shares allotted

Class No, Consiferation
£000
A Ordinary shates of £1 cach! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ovdinary shares of £1 each? 1,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 cach? 1,232,266 i 36
85,866,210 119,120

! A Ordinary shares of £1 cach have ful! voling and payments of dividend cights, right to distributions alengside B Crdinaty sharcholders in
priarity lo C Ordinary sharehalder, subject to a Ihreshold, Rights to distributions once the threshold has heen surpessed alongside the B Ordinary
shereholdess and C Qrdinsry sharcholders.

* B Ordinary shares of £1 each have foll voling and paymens of dividend righls, right te disinbutions atongside A Qrdinary shareholders in
privrty to C Cedinary sharehiolder, subject 1o a thireshiold. Righis to dislribwtions once the {lreshold has been surpassed slongside the A Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinary shareholders.

1€ Ordinary shares of £1 each have no veting rights. C Ordinary shares have rights to dividends and distzibutions once the flireshold has been
surpassed alongside the A and B Ordinary shareholders,

22, Loans and borvowings

Graup

2022

Nou-curreit loans and barrowings £
External foans 165.0
Capitalised debt fees (5.4)
External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facitity agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandcastle Care and fulure acquisitions. As at the end of the period the dvawn senior facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group®s assets and carry interest at a veriable maygin over the applicable SONIA rate.
‘The loans are repayable 7 years fiom the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are divectly attiibutable te the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loan fecilities are subject to 4 single financial covenant test which is assessed quarterly. This covenant
assesses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a vatio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the cansolidated group at
each quarterly test date. Af the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was matetially below this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proferma LTM EBITDA,

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting lo £2.3m. This athount s ringfenced within
the Group’s tatal revolving credit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheet date. These letters issued by the Group’s principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and to support credit granted under supplier contracts,
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{continued)
23. Provisions
TLegal
provision
022
£m
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income staternent 0.4
Used during year {0.2)
1.0
24. Trade and other payables
Group  Company
2022 2022
Em Em
Trade payables 3.1 -
Accrued expenses n.z -
Amounts due to related partfes - 0.9
Social security and othel taxes 2.3 _
Other payables 4.4 .
21,5 0.9

Other payables conaist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK. [or the operation and investment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons,

25. Pension

The Group aperates defined contribution pension schemes. The pension cost charge for the perlod represents
conttibutions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted fo £4.5m

24. Deferved tax

Deferred lax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expected lo be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balances which are expeeied (o reverse as af 1 September 2022,

Deferred tax assels have been recoghised in respect of ali temporary differences giving rise to deferred tex assets
where the Divectors belleve it is probable that these assets will be recovered.,

The movements in defevred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetilng of balances within the same Jurisdiction
as permilted by [AS 12) during the period are shown below.
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Deferred tux (continued)

Details of the deferred tax liability, amaounts recopnised in the profit or foss and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

Recopnised in Recognised in Recognised in Total
business inegme other 31 Aungusf
combiuntions comprehensive 2022
(Note 17) incomne
Intangible asset differcnces 23,8 (1.3) - 22,5
Tangible assel differences 14.0 (0.3) o - 137
37.8 (1.6 - 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capital tax losses carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
as there is insufficient evidence as to their recoverabilily.

27, Financial instrumecuts
Financial rssets and liabilitics
Financial assets and financial liabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial

position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax linbilities.

Group Company
2022 2022
Financial asscts £ £
[hvestmernits in subsidiaties - 119.1
Trade and other recelvables 22.8 02
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40,9 120.9

Financial liabilities
Trade and olher payables 21.5 09
Income tax liability 0.9 -
Deferred income 2838 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Loans aud borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions 1.0 -
372.3 0.%

There is no difference between the carrying value of financial insiruments and their fair value, The Group has no
financial instruments that ave measured at fair value.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.
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TFinaneial instruments {eanfinued)
Tinanclal rislc managentent

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest end liquidity sisks which arise in the normal
course of busineys, The psimary financial visks that the Group is exposed lo are detailed below:

Credit risk - Cash deposits and Tradle recetvables
Financial insruments which potentially expose the Group to credlt risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with majaet financial institutions that satisfy ceriain credit criteria, Credit risk in refation to
Lrade receivables is nol considered to be significant glven that the vast majority of revenue is derived firom publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credil fo custemers in the noratal course of busiacss and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1in for doubtful receivables. The Group measurss those allowances al an
amount egual to the lifetime expected credit losses using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historical experience and forward-looking information.

Allowances against doubl{ul debls are recogrised againsi trade receivables baged an estimated irrecaverable amounds,
determined by teference lo past experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group's allowance for doubtful
debls velales lo specific ade receivables that are net considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
eppropriate to create a collective pravision based on the age ofthe (rade receivable fn respect of cestain types of trade
receivables,

The aging of trade receivables al 31 August is as follows:

£m
Current 49
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 03
19.7

The Directors consider thal the carrying ameunt of irade and other receivables is approximately equal to their faiv
value.

Trede receivables af least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m,

Further to the credil risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any signifloant credil risk
cxpostire to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar chavacteristics, The Group defines
counlerparties as having similar characteristios if they are related entities,

Thsre {s no concern bver the eredit quality of amounts past due but for which no foss altowances has been recognised
since the risk is spread over 2 number of unrelated counterparties which include central and local Government, The
maxinium exposure to credit risk at the repoiting date is the catrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by lhe Group,
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Fiaancial rislk management (continned)

Interest yate visk — Seilor and Revolving credit facilitles containing a variable element linked [o Sieviing Overnight
Tndex Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. The facilities ave
denominaied in pounds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving factlities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

In addition to assessments requived by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term interest rate exposure
on & manthly basis, and longer term exposure on a bi-annual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently dees not have & hedged component te the interest burden on its
external debt, in light of prevailing market conditions, and the high cost of hedging instruments, the Direcfors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rete rises.

Based on modetling performed, a 100 basis point shilt in SONLA rates would have a £1,65m increase or decease on
interest paymenis due on the Group’s external debl. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) would have an hmpact of £5.8m on interest paymenls due an the
Group’s external debt.

Liguidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects, Borrowing facilities are utilised as necessary to financs requirements. ‘The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash Tlow maturities for financia) labilities:

Totat  0-1 years 2-5yecars 5+ years

Trade and ofther payables 21.6 21.6
Barrowings 165.0 185.0
Lease liabilitics 303.8 15.5 57.0 2313

Foreign currency yislc

Substantially all of the Group’s opeations are in the UK and as suck forsign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capltal Risle Manspement

The Group's objective when managing its capital is to ensure that enlities in (he Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returng for stakeholders through the oplimisation of debt and equity. The Group's
capital structure is as follows:

2022
£m
Cash 18.1
Borrowings! {165.0)
Lease liabilities {160.5)
Equity 92.0
). Bxcluding acerued interest and copitaiised debl fees
Analysls of net debt
Rusiness Chash Other
Combtuations Flow Interest movement?
£m £n1 FH £m £m
Cash 5.5 12.6 - - 18,1
DBormrowings' (41.3) {123.7) - - (165.0)
Net Debt (exeluding (35.8) {111.1) - - (146.9)
_Lease linbilities)
_Lease liabilities (534) 153 (10.5) [( )] (160.5)
Net Debt (193.0) {02.0) (10.5) {11.9) (307.4)

I Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees of £5.4m
2, Relales lo non-pash movements in Jease linbilities - see note 13 for delails

28. Related parties

Ultimate parent and controlling party

The Company’s iinmediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The uliimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The uitimate contrelling party is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.Y

Aspris Holdco Lintied s the smallest and largest company tor which consolidated financial statements are prepaced
for public use.
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Related partles (continued)

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiavies, which ave related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1.4m from Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related paity as a joint venture investment which is equity
accovnted for in these statements, there {s no interest charge, and this balance is tepayable on demand. Held against
this receivables is a provision of £0.4m for the Group's share of the initial losses incurred over the investiment amount
made in Saudi Healtheare LLC. The net of the amannts owed of £1.0m is detailed in note 18.

The Group paid a managernent charge of £30,000 to WPEF VIII Holding Cobperatief W.A, a related parly through
common control,

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group {note 17) Priory Ilducation Services Limited (“PESL") was 2 part of the Priory
Group. Al the lime of (he transaction Priory Group was & relaied party. Whilst the Group’s operations were largely
autonomous froim those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a {ransitional services arrangement agreed at the tims of the
Group's acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office suppott, including use of systems
and software, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance. This transitional stage
included the implementation of Aspris’ own standalone systems and suppott infrasttucture, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received under this transitional arcangement ceased 1o be
provided from: that dats.

On 28 January 2022, the Group aequited 100% of the issued shate capital of SC Topeo Limited (note 17), oblaining
contrel. SC Topco Limited was a related party by the nature of commaon ownership. One of the principel purposes of
the acquisition 1vas to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service,

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an interest vale equal to the IMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concurrent with the pevied with which the Directors remain shaveholders in the Group. Interest
{s paid by the Ditectors annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balunce is permitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the period end
being included in other receivables (note 18}
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ICey management persanncl

Key management personnel are those persons having anthorlty and responsibility foe planning, ditecting and
controlling the activities of the Group.

2022
£000
Directors’ emoluments 1,926
Directors’ post-employment benefits g

Tolal emoluments for (he highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-olf non-recurring revvard of
£305,000 relating Lo the exceptionally high level of corporate iransaciions and reorganisation activity successfully
completed during the period, The value of the Company’s contributicns paid to a defined contribution pension
scheme in respeat of the highest paid director amounted io £4,000,

The number of Directors to whom retlrement benefits are accrued unduer money purchase penston schemes is 2,

29, Evenis after reporting date
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent wilh the Group strategy of expanding its speciatist
education division, the Group cormipleted tlie acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on 1 March 2023.

The scquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the Hasl of England,

To support this scquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available external debl facilitics with its existing tenders. This new growdh facility was agreed and effective from 8
February 2023. These facilities provide an additiona! £25m of committed available debt capacity to suppart the
growth projeets of the Group,

In addition, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued ndditional equity copital to ils shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of a partial dravvdown of the new growih debt
facility and this new equlty capital vaise,
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